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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT &

TO THE MEMBERS OF GMR AMBALA-CHANDIGARH EXPRESSWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of GMR AMBALA-CHANDIGARH
EXPRESSWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial
Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note No. 34 to the accompanying standalone financial statements, regarding the
continuous losses incurred by the Company resulting in erosion of net-worth. As stated in the said note,
these events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note no. 30 (iii), 31 and 32, indicates
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a

going concern.
Our opinion is not modified in this respect.
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We draw attention to the following notes to the accompanying standalone financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2024:

a. Note No. 31 to the accompanying standalone financial statements, which describes uncertainty in
the matter relating to claim of the Company for compensation of loss of revenue from National
Highways Authority of India, State of Punjab and State of Haryana arising as a result of diversion of
partial traffic on development of competing road subsequent to bidding of the project which has
been referred back to Arbitration tribunal by the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi which is yet to attain
finality.

b. Note No. 32 to the accompanying standalone financial statements, regarding the assessment of the
asset’s value by the valuation expert. The valuation expert based on the assumption of receipt of the
damages / compensation claim of the Company, has determined value in use of the Company assets
as at December 31, 2023 (i.e,, valuation date) higher than the carrying value of the Asset. The value
in useso determined is critically dependent upon the receipt of claims for damages and
compensation in the pending proceedings as referred in Note no. 31 to the accompanying
standalone financial statements.

C. Note No. 30 (iii) to the accompanying standalone financial statements, regarding non-provisioning
of interest on negative grant amounting to Rs. 6,032.39 Lakhs calculated up to August 25, 2020 (Rs.
10,134.00 Lakhs as per NHAI demand up to October 31, 2020) for such reasons as referred to in the
said note.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters.
Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other
information comprises the information included in Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report,
but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The report
containing other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the report containing other
information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate
the matter to those charged with governance. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the management of the Company is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management of the Company
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standard on Auditing (SAs) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
Contd...4

Continuation sheet...



CHATURVEDI [ SHAH ..»

Chartered Accountants

i
-4 ﬁ

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters; the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure
A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books:

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Changes in Equity, the statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books of account;
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in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

the matters described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern paragraph,

Emphasis of Matter paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the
functioning of the Company.

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in ‘Annexure B’;

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has not paid any remuneration to its managerial personnel during the year
and accordingly reporting in accordance with the provisions of section 197(16) of the Act is
not required,;

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 20 14, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
to the extent quantifiable in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note No. 30
and 31 to the standalone financial statements;

ii. ~ the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

lii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a)  The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(‘Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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b)  The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢)  Based on our audit procedures conducted that are considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that cause
us to believe that the representation given by the management as mentioned
above under paragraph (2) (i) (iv) (a) & (b) contain any material misstatement.

v.  The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of audit we did not come across any instance of
the audit trail feature being tampered with.

for CHATURVEDI & SHAH LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 101720W / W100355

@’ L\&J{’ “elk o~

Lalit R Mhalsekar
Partner
Membership Number: 103418

UDIN: 21y [0 2L} 18 B L CRRF 212/

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 29, 2024
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT u

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of GMR HYDERABAD VIJAYAWADA EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of accounts and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i) Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its Property Plant and
Equipment (PPE) by which PPE are verified every three years, in accordance with this
program, the Company during the year has done physical verification of PPE and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical

verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets.

) The Company does not own any freehold immovable properties (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the

lessee) and the company does not have any lease/sublease deed on leasehold land registered
in the name of the Company.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as
at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 20 16) and rules made thereunder.

i) a) In our opinion, physical verification of the inventories have been conducted at reasonable
intervals by the management having regard to the size and nature of business of the
Company and nature of its inventory, the coverage and procedures of such verification by
the management is appropriate. As explained to us and on the basis of the records examined
by us, the value of the discrepancies noticed on physical verification by management did not
exceed 10% or more in aggregate of each class of inventory.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility from banks or financial
institutions and hence reporting under Paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

iif)  The Company, during the year, has not made any investment, or provided any guarantee or security
or has not granted any advances in the nature of loans to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other entities hence requirement of provisions of paragraph 3(iii) (a) to (f) is
not applicable.
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iv)  The Company, during the year, has not given any loans, made investments, guarantees and security
to the parties covered under section 185 of the Act. Further, the Company is an infrastructure
Company and accordingly section 186 of the Act is not applicable. Consequently, requirement of
paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

v)  The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). There are no orders from Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or
Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal. Accordingly, the provision of paragraph
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi)  To the best of our knowledge and explanations given to us, the company is not falling in the
threshold hold prescribed by Central Government under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Act in
respect of business activities undertaken by Company. Accordingly, the provision of paragraph 3(vi)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii)  a) In our opinion, the company during the year has generally been regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including employee’ state insurance,
provident fund, goods and services tax, income-tax and other material statutory dues
applicable to it with appropriate authorities.

There are no undisputed statutory dues payable as at March 31, 2024, for a period of more
than six months from the date they become payable.

b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above, which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

viii)  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961).

ix) a) The Company had defaulted in the repayment of dues to five banks amounting to Rs. 813.84
Lakhs towards principal and Rs. 857.94 Lakhs towards interest as at December 31, 2023.
The delays ranged between 2 to 90 days. The Company during the year has implemented and
given effect to the resolution plan as detailed in the note 12 to the accompanying financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 whereby the outstanding principal and
interest has been structured and rescheduled by the lenders effective December 2021.
Pursuant to and post implementation of resolution plan, the Company’s status on the
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender
have been regularised. The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings or
interest thereon in respect to government during the year.
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b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.
c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilized term

loans at the beginning of the year and hence requirement of paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
raised any fresh short-term funds during the year hence requirement of paragraph 3(ix)(d)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

e) On overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures hence requirement of paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

X) a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year, hence requirement of paragraph 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company during the year has converted certain outstanding borrowings into non-
convertible debentures and compulsorily  convertible debentures pursuant to
implementation of resolution plan as detailed in note 12 to the accompanying financial
statements. The Company has complied with provisions of sections 42 to 62 of the
Companies Act, 2013, as applicable, in respect of the preferential allotment or private
placement of above non-convertible debentures and compulsorily convertible debenture
during the year. No fresh funds have been raised on account of the aforesaid conversion.

xi) a) No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

b) No report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed by cost auditors or
secretarial auditors or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up-to
the date of this report.

c) There are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

Xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly paragraph 3(xii) (a) to (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

Xiii)  In our opinion, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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xiv) a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and

nature of its business.

b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

xv)  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons

connected with its director and hence provision of Section 192 of the Act is not applicable to the
Company.

xvi) a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly paragraph 3 (xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable.

d) As represented by the management, the Group has two Core Investment Companies (CICs)
as part of the Group as per the definition of Group contained in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

xvii)  The Company has neither incurred cash losses during the financial year nor in the immediately
preceding financial year.

xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XiX)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our review of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, there is a existence of material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern as on the date of the audit
report and the capability of the company for meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date is dependent
on the assurance of the Holding Company to provide necessary financial and other assistance for
running its operations as referred to in Note No 34 to the accompanying standalone financial
statements (Refer Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern Section of our report). We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.
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The Company is not liable to spend on Corporate Social responsibility for the year under audit in

terms of the section 135 of the Act, hence reporting requirement under Paragraph 3 (xx) (a) and (b)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, Company is not required to prepare the consolidated financial statement under sub
section 3 of section 129 of the Act, hence, reporting requirement under Paragraph 3 (xxi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

for CHATURVEDI & SHAH LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 101720W / W100355

@W@gqh

Lalit R Mhalsekar
Partner
Membership Number: 103418

UDIN: 2141024|Q BCRYF 2127

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 29, 2024
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GMR AMBALA-CHANDIGARH EXPRESSWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U45203KA2005PTC036773

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 36.51 41.67
Right of use assets 3 19.99 31.42
Other intangible assets 4 22,986.46 28,077.37
Financial Assets
Other financial assets 5 24.32 24.13
Income tax assets (net) 18.03 1.14 4.79
Total Non-Current Assets 23,068.42 28,179.38
Current Assets
Inventories 7 74.88 64.84
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 488.77 240.66
Bank balances other than above 9 520.00 -
Other financial assets 5 54.10 28.46
Other current assets 6 190.07 76.97
Total Current Assets 1,327.82 410.93
TOTAL ASSETS 24,396.24 28,590.31
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 10 9,823.80 9,823.80
Other equity 11 (18,141.58) (35,365.59)
Total Equity (8,317.78) (25,541.79)
LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Non Current borrowings 12 22,698.62 26,253.85
Lease Liabilities 13 10.03 21.64
Other financial liabilities 16 3,916.67 3,582.41
Provisions 14 2,881.03 4.52
Total Non-current Liabilities 29,506.35 29,862.42
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Current borrowings 12 266.53 8,841.65
Lease Liabilities 13 11.61 9.75
Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 15 51.52 156.56
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than (a) above 15 570.64 544.06
Other financial liabilities 16 146.87 10,818.53
Other current liabilities 17 129.19 97.47
Provisions 14 2,031.321 3,801.66
Total Current Liabilities 3,207.67 24,269.68
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 24,396.24 28,590.31
Material accounting policies 1.2 4 =

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number ; 101720W / W100355

Lalit R Mhalsekar
Partner
Membership No.: 103418

Date : April 29, 2024
Place : Mumbai

e

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
GMR AMBALA-CHANDIGARH EXPRESSWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED

t

(o] Bgu:aru Raju

Director
DIN: 00082228

t Saxena
Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 075064

Date : April 29, 2024
Place : New Delhi

Arun Kumar Sharma

Director
DIN: 02281905

Divya Kalra

Company Secretary
Membership No. ACS 70871



GMR AMBALA-CHANDIGARH EXPRESSWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45203KA2005PTC036773

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Note March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
INCOME
Revenue from operations 19 8,114.63 7,149.97
Other income 20 59.85 21,75
Total Income 8,174.48 7,171.72
EXPENSES
Operating expenses 21 1,467.61 1,500.02
Employee benefits expense 22 702.95 151.35
Other expenses 25 837.82 740.16
Total Expense 3,008.38 2,391.53
Earnings /(loss) before finance cost, tax, 5,166.10 4,780.19
depreciation and amortisation expenes (EBITDA)
and exceptional items (1-2)
Finance costs 23 2,922.31 5,126.73
Depreciation and amortization expense 24 5,114.03 4,150.10
Loss for the year before exceptional items and tax (2,870.24) (4,496.64)
Exceptional items (Loss)/ Gain 26 144.38 870.50
Loss for the year before taxation (2,725.86) (3,626.14)
Tax Expense: 18
Current tax - -
Deferred tax expense (credit) - -
Income tax for earlier years : (1.82) -
(1.82) =
Loss for the year after tax (2,724.04) (3,626.14)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
[tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans (0.24) 7.02
Income tax effect - 5
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (0.24) 7.02
Total comprehensive income for the year (2,724.28) (3,619.12)
Earnings per equity share: (face value of equity shares of Rs.10 each)
Basic 27 (2.77) (3.69)
Diluted 27 (2.77) (3.69)
Material accounting policies 1.2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP GMR AMBALA-CHANDIGARH EXPRESSWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED
Chartered Accountants k
Firm Registration Number : 101720W / W100355 =,
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O Bangaru Raju Arun Kumar Sharma
8 Sh Director Director
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Lalit R Mhalsekar —Nludit Saxena Divya Kalra
Partner a > Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 103418 = ' Membership No. 075064 Membership No. ACS 70871
Date : April 29, 2024 Date : April 29, 2024 i

Place : Mumbai Place : New Delhi
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

A. Equity Share Capital

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Note March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 10 9,823.80 9,823.80
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - 2
Restated balance at beginning of the year 9,823.80 9,823.80
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 10 9,823.80 9,823.80

B. Other Equity
Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Instruments Equity component Retained earnings Other Total [Refer Note
classified as of financial comprehensive No.11]
entirely equity in instruments income
nature

Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

Balance as at April 1, 2022 - 16,758.28 (63,147.95) (2.84) (46,392.51)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period = = = = &

Restated balance as at April 1, 2022 - 16,758.28 (63,147.95) (2.84) (46,392.51)
Loss for the year - - (3,626.14) - (3,626.14)
Conversion of Redeemable Preference Shares 14,646.04 - - - 14,646.04

into Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares
Other comprehensive income

Re-measurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit - - - 7.02 7.02
Balance as at March 31, 2023 14,646.04 16,758.28 (66,774.09) 4.18 (35,365.59)
Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
Balance as at April 1, 2023 14,646.04 16,758.28 (66,774.09) 4.18 (35,365.59)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period - - - - =
Restated balance as at April 1, 2023 14,646.04 16,758.28 (66,774.09) 4.18 (35,365.59)
Loss for the year - - (2,724.04) B (2,724.04)
Conversion of Unsecured Loan & Non trade 21,121.40 E - - 21,121.40
payable into Compulsorily  Convertible
Unwinding of unsecured loans on conversion into - (1,173.11) - - (1,173.11)
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures
Recognition / (derecognition) of Equity - (15,085.32) 15,085.32 - -

component of financial instruments to retained
Other comprehensive income

Re-measurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit - - (0.24) (0.24)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 35,767.44 499.85 (54,412.81) 3.94 (18,141.58)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP GMR AMBALA-CHANDIGARH EXPRESSWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED
Chartered Accountants )
Firm Registration Number : 101720W / W100355 [- = 1
/ <
v i
O Bangaru Raju Arun Kumar Sharma
Director Director
(O— DIN: 00082228 DIN: 02281905
/@\\W oy

Lalit R Mhalsekar dit Saxena Divya Kalra
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 103418 Membership No. 075064 Membership No. ACS 70871
Date : April 29, 2024 Date : April 29, 2024

Place : Mumbai Place : New Delhi




GMR AMBALA-CHANDIGARH EXPRESSWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45203KA2005PTC036773

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Loss for the year

(2,725.86) (3,626.14)
Adjustments For ;
Depreciation and amortisation 5,114.03 4,150.10
Interest and finance charges 2,922.31 5,126.73
Major maintenance expenses 954.39 886.70
Exceptional (Gain)/Loss {144.38) (870.50)
Loss / (profit) on sale of property plant and equipment - 0.57
Reameasurements of defined benefit plans {0.24) 7.02
Interest income on bank deposit and others (9.42) (0.04)
Interest on Income Tax Refund (0.26) (0.89)
Balances written off 0.09 55.00
Excess provision/ liabilities written back (49.19) (11.81)
6,061.47 5,716.74
Adjustments for Movement in Working Capital:
Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets and loans (17.33) 14.46
Decrease / (increase) in other assets (113.18) 22.63
Decrease / (increase) in Inventories (10.04) 7.66
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables (29.28) (489.90)
Increase / (decrease) in financial liabilities 3,278.94 6,162.33
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities 176.10 236.04
Increase / (decrease) in Provision 24.16 (1,581.07)
Cash From/(used In) Operating activities 9,370.84 10,088.89
Tax (paid)/refund 5.73 14.82
Net Cash From/(used In) Operating activities 9,376.57 10,103.71
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {6.53) (8.35)
Sale of property, plant and equipment B 1.99
Interest received on bank deposit 0.92 -
Decrease/(increase) in Other Bank Balance (520.00) -
Cash From/(used In) Investing Activities (525.61) (6.36)
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of term loan from banks (3,740.42) (3,621.66)
Repayment of Negative Grant (2,462.85) (3,569.75)
Payment of Lease Liabilities (12.76) (3.15)
Interest and finance charges paid to others (2,160.81) (2,770.24)
Interest paid to related parties (226.01) (16.41)
Cash From/(used In) Financing Activities (8,602.85) (9,981.21)
D Net Increase / decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents [A+B+C] 248.11 116.14
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at beginning of the year 240.66 124.52
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at end of the year 488.77 240.66
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash in hand 46.90 22.45
Balances with banks
- Current account 441.87 218.21
- Fixed deposits = o
Total 488.77 240.66




GMR AMBALA-CHANDIGARH EXPRESSWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
Notes :

1 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Ind AS-7 on Statement of Cash Flows as referred to

2

in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

Opening balance Cash flows Non-cash / fair value Closing Balance
changes/ Others

For the year ended March 31, 2024

External borrowings 19,591.04 (3,740.42) 21.78 15,872.40
Liability portion of Loan from related parties 6,611.70 - (5,948.86) 662.84
Borrowing from related parties 6,429.91 - - 6,429.91
Negative government grant 2,462.85 (2,462.85) - B

Lease Liahilities 31.39 (12.76) 3.01 21.64
Interest accrued 4,243.98 (2,386.82) 2,138.88 3,996.04
For the year ended March 31, 2023

Liability portion of preference shares* 14,520.33 - {14,520.33) -

External borrowings 23,199.16 (3,621.66) 13.54 19,591.04
Liability portion of Loan from related parties 5,973.57 - 638.13 6,611.70
Borrowing from related parties 6,429.91 - - 6,429.91
Negative government grant 6,032.60 (3,569.75) - 2,462.85
Lease Liabilities - (3.15) 34.54 31.39
Interest accrued 3,760.83 (2,786.65) 3,2659.80 4,243.98

*[Refer Note No.10(c) ]

3 The previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 101720W / W100355

Lalit R Mhalsekar B st

Partner
Membership No.: 103418

Date : April 29, 2024
Place : Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
GMR BALA-CHANDIGARH EXPRESSWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED

3
-

f

O Bangaru Raju Arun Kumar Sharma
Director Director
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7 —Mudit Saxena Dilya Kalra
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 075064 Membership No. ACS 70871

Date : April 29, 2024
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Company Overview and Material Accounting Policies:

Company Overview

GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited (the Company) is incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at 25/1,
SKIP House, Museum Road, Bangalore, Karnataka-560025. The Company has principal place of business at Chandigarh, Punjab, The company has
registered itself as Medium enterprise under Micro, small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006.

The Company engaged in development of highways on build, operate and transfer model on toll basis. This entity is a Special purpose Vehicle
which has entered into a Concession Agreement with National Highways Authority of India for carrying out the project of Design, Construction,
Development, Improvement, Operation and Maintenance including strengthening and widening of Ambala — Chandigarh section on National
Highway 21 and 22 in the states of Punjab and Haryana on Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) basis.

The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
Board of Directors on April 29, 2024.

Material accounting policies
The significant accounting policies applied by the company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below. Such accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.
Basis of preparation
The Financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), under the historical cost convention on the
accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) (to the
extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.
The Company has presented (loss) / profit before finance costs, taxes, depreciation, amortisation expenses and exceptional items as EBITDA.
The audited Financial are presented in Indian Rupees (INR)/Rupees in Lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.
Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Current versus non-current classification
Assets and Liabilities in the balance sheet have been classified as either current or non—current based upon the requirements of Schedule Il
notified under the Companies Act, 2013.
An asset has been classified as current if
(a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle; or
(b} itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or
(c) it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(d) itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date.

All other assets have been classified as non—current.

A liability has been classified as current when

(a) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle; or
(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or

(c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
All other liabilities have been classified as non—current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b) Foreign currency and derivative transactions
The Company's financial statements are presented in INR, which is company’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the respective transactions between the
functional currency and the foreign currency.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettled at the Balance Sheet date are translated at the rates of exchange
prevailing on that date. Gains / losses arising on account of realisation / settlement of foreign currency transactions and on translation of
foreign currency assets and liabilities are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting monetary items at rates different from those at which
they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the
year in which they arise.

Non— monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign
currency, are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

The‘gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items .J\i\'ihﬁ_se\fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCl or profit or
loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively). Y \
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1 Company Overview and Material Accounting Policies:

C

d)

{a) Any gains or losses arising due to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or settlement are accounted for in the
Statement of Profit & Loss either under the head foreign exchange fluctuation or interest cost, as the case may be, except those relating to
long-term foreign currency monetary items.

(b) Exchange differences pertaining to long term foreign currency loans obtained or re-financed on or before 31 March 2016:

Exchange differences on long-term foreign currency monetary items relating to acquisition of depreciable assets are adjusted to the carrying
cost of the assets and depreciated over the balance life of the assets. In other cases, exchange differences are accumulated in a "Foreign
Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account” and amortized over the balance period of such long-term foreign currency
monetary item by recognition as income or expense in each of such periods.

Exchange differences pertaining to long term foreign currency loans obtained or re-financed on or after 1 April 2016:

The exchange differences pertaining to long term foreign currency working capital loans obtained or re-financed on or after 1 April 2016 is
charged off or credited to profit & loss account under Ind AS.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
i) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from operations:

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.
The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements.

Toll Revenue is recognised on usage of public service on accrual basis. Claims raised on NHAI under concession agreement are accounted
for in the year of acceptance.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration that is specified in a contract with a customer or is expected to be received in exchange
for the products or services and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of
promised products or services to customers. To recognize revenues, the Company applies the following five step approach: (1) identify the
contract with a customer, (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction price, (4) allocate the
transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract, and (5) recognize revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

The revenue is recognised when (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied, which typically occurs when {or as) control over the
products or services is transferred to a customer.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope or contract price.
The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added to an existing contract are distinct and whether
the pricing is at the standalone selling price. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch-up basis, while
those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the standalone
selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.
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Interest income and other income:

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the

financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of
profit and loss.

On disposal of current investments, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the
statement of profit and loss. Such income is included under the head “other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividend income is accounted for in the year in which the right to receive the same is established by the reporting date.

e) Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment. Such cost includes
the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are
met.
Recognition:
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:
(a) itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
(b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, Company depreciates them separately based on
their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.
The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met,
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of tangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposable proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.
Further, When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.
Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous inspection (as distinct from physical parts) is derecognised,
Machinery spares which are specific to a particular item of PPE and whose use is expected to be irregular are capitalized as fixed assets.
Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the company intends to use these during more than a period of
12 months.
Depreciation on PPE is provided on straight line method, up to the cost of the asset (net of residual value), in accordance with the useful
lives prescribed under Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013 which are as below:
Asset Type Estimated useful Life (In Years)
Plant and equipment 4-15 years
Office equipment 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8-10 years
Servers & Networks 6 years
Computers 3 years
Depreciation on additions is being provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of such additions. Similarly, depreciation on assets
sold/disposed off during the year is being provided up to the dates on which such assets are sold/disposed off. Modification or extension to
an existing asset, which is of capital nature and which becomes an integral part thereof is depreciated prospectively over the remaining
useful life of that asset.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of praperty, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in an amalgamation
in the nature of purchase is their fair value as at the date of amalgamation. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amartisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of

profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.
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g)

h)

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Carriageways is being amortised over concession period on proportionate revenue method., Computer software is being amortized over a
period of 6 years on a straight line basis,

The above periods also represent the management estimated economic useful life of the respective intangible assets.
Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC| or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity).

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing Cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period they occur.

Inventories

Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value on First In First Out basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Lease

Finance Leases:

Where the Company is the lessee

The Company assesses, whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract involves—

{a) the use of an identified asset,

(b) the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identified asset, and

(c) the right to direct the use of the identified asset,

The Company at the inception of the lease contract recognizes a Right-of-Use (RoU) asset at cost and corresponding lease liability, except
for leases with term of less than twelve months (short term) and low-value assets.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease
liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.
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k)

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.

Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the
value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those
from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees,
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments
of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Lease payments have been classified as cash used in Financing activities.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of building, machinery and equipment (i.e., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment and building that are considered of low value. Lease
payments on short- term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Operating Leases:

Where the Company is the lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease, All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease separately. The sublease is
classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Impairment

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset's or cash generating units’ (CGUs) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company of
assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre—tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for each of the
company's cash generating units to which the individual assets are allocated, These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering
a period of five years, For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.
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Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except for previously revalued tangible PPE,
where the revaluation was taken to revaluation reserve. In this case, the impairment is also recognized in the revaluation reserve up to the
amount of any previous revaluation.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the assets recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and capital commitments

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely
rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements, Contingent assets are only disclosed when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the entity.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company's expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to
a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

Retirement and other Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits and defined contribution plans.

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits.
Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc.,are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee
renders the related service.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund.

The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service.
If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the reporting date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. if the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to, for example. a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Compensated absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The company
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitiement that has
accumulated at the reporting date.

The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for
measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The
company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the
settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-current liability.
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Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the scheme is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation
under projected unit credit (PUC) method.

The company recognizes termination benefit as a liability and an expense when the company has a present obligation as a result of past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the balance sheet

date, they are measured at present value of future cash flows using the discount rate determined by reference to market * yields at the
balance sheet date on government bonds,

Remeasurements

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in
which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

> The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

> The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are only classified as Debt instruments at amortised cost.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met;

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit
or loss, This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company's of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e. removed from the balance sheet) when:

> The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

>The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either {a} the company has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay.
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i) Financial assets
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss
on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables
and bank balance

b} Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company determines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-
month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date,

ECL s the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is
required to consider:

> All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the
financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity
is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.

> Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and
loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

> Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those
assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

i) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings etc.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings and security deposits received.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

:
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0) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprises cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with an original
maturity periods of three months or less.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

p) Earnings per share
Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earnings Per Share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

q) Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipt or payments and item of income or expense associated with
investing or financing cash-flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Key accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Uncertainty about

these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods.

The estimate and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which are estimate is revised and future periods affected.

Significant judgements and the estimates relating to the carrying values of assets and liabilities, provision for employee benefits and others
provisions, commitments and contingencies and fair value measurements of investments.

i) Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions :

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of
the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a) Income tax
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

b) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments. Refer note no.28 for further disclosures.

¢) Contingencies
Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal and
contractual claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The
assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use
of estimates regarding the outcome of future events. [Refer note no.30 & 31]

d) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.
The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds.
The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at the interval in
response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates in India.
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i) Significant judgements :

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
a) Impairment of Intangible Assets:
The Company has received Order from the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi setting aside the Arbitral Award as detailed in Note No. 31. In view of
the same and based on the legal opinions and its assessment is of the view that the said claims would be upheld either by Arbitral Tribunal
or Delhi High Court and the claim amount will be received by the Company in the ensuing years. The probability of receipt of these amounts
have been considered in cash flows for the purpose of impairement testing by expert valuer.

b) Amortisation:

Intangible Asset arising on service concession arrangement is being amortised on proportionate revenue method. To apply the said method
of amortisation, future revenue has been estimated by the Management. The amortisation is based on the revenue projections without
considering the revenue impact of Change in Law claims made by the Company for amortisation.
c) Provision for periodic major maintenance (overlay activities)
As per the terms of concession agreement, the Company is required to carry out periodic major maintenance of project roads once in every
five years which requires technical evaluation and critical assumptions, accounting estimates and judgements. The management has
estimated the cost to be incurred on such periodic major maintenance to recognise the provision as per the requirements of IND AS 37.
Further details are given in note no.14
1.4 Introduction of new standards and amendments to existing standards issued but not effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to
the existing standards applicable to the Company.

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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3 Right of use Assets

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Leashold Buildings Total
Gross block
As at April 01, 2022 - -
Additions 34.23 34.23
Disposals / Adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2023 34.23 34.23
Additions - -
Disposals / Adjustments
As at March 31, 2024 34,23 34.23
Depreciation
As at April 01, 2022 . &
Charge for the year 2.81 2.81
Disposals / Adjustments - =
As at March 31, 2023 2.81 2.81
Additions 11.43 11.43
Disposals / Adjustments = =
As at March 31, 2024 14.24 14.24
Net block
As at March 31, 2023 31.42 31.42
As at March 31, 2024 19.99 19.99

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)




GMR AMBALA-CHANDIGARH EXPRESSWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45203KA2005PTC036773

Notes to Financial Statements

4 Other Intangible Assets

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Carriageways Software Total
Gross block
As at April 01, 2022 52,555.62 68.23 52,623.85
Additions = = !
Disposals / Adjustments - . n
As at March 31, 2023 52,555.62 68.23 52,623.85
Additions = = =
Disposals / Adjustments - - -
As at March 31, 2024 52,555.62 68.23 52,623.85
Depreciation
As at April 01, 2022 20,343.37 68.21 20,411.58
Charge for the year 4,134.90 = 4,134.90
Disposals / Adjustments - = -
As at March 31, 2023 24,478.27 68.21 24,546.48
Charge for the year 5,090.91 - 5,090.91
Disposals / Adjustments - - -
As at March 31, 2024 29,569.18 68.21 29,637.39
Net block
As at March 31, 2023 28,077.35 0.02 28,077.37
As at March 31, 2024 22,986.44 0.02 22,986.46

Notes:

1 Deemed Cost: The Company during the Financial Year 2016-17, had first time adopted Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued
thereafter. The Company had elected to use its previous GAAP carrying value as at April 01, 2015 being the opening balance sheet date for the
purpose of first time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101, ‘First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards’.
Accordingly the value of gross block disclosed above includes carrying value of assets at the transition date (i.e., April 01, 2015) which is considered

as deemed cost.
2 For charges created on Intangible assets refer note no,12

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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5 Other financial assets

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Non-current:
Carried at amortised cost
Unsecured, considered good
Deposit with Government Departments and others

24.32 24,13
Sub Total 24.32 24.13
Current:
Carried at amortised cost
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits — considered good - unsecured
with others 0.70 0.70
Receivable from NHAI 5.63 6.22
Receivable from toll customers 39.46 21.54
Interest accrued on deposits with banks 8.31 -
Sub Total 54.10 28.46
Total 78.42 52.59
Note :-
i) The fair value of other financial assets are not materially different from the carrying value presented.
Other assets
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current:

Unsecured, considered good
Advances recoverable in cash or kind

- Advance to suppliers 75.09 2.54

- Advance to employees for expenses 4.00 271
Prepaid expenses 3.63 66.86
Other recoverables 101.33 -
Balances with government authorities 6.02 4.86
Total 190.07 76.97
Note :-
i) For charges created on current assets refer note no.12

Inventories

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Stores and spares 74.88 64.84
Total 74.88 64.84
Notes:

a) Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.
b) For charges created on inventories refer note no.12.
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8 Cash and cash equivalents

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash in hand 46.90 22.45
Balances with banks

- Current account 441,87 218.21
Total 488.77 240.66
Note:

a) For charges created on cash and bank balances refer note no.12.

9 Other bank balances

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Balance held as margin money or as security against borrowings 520.00 -
Total 520.00 -
Note:

a) For charges created on cash and bank balances refer note no.12,
b) The fair value of other bank balances are not materially different from the carrying value presented.

(This Space has been intentionally left biank)
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10 Equity share capital

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Authorised

9,85,00,000 [March 31, 2023 : 9,85,00,000] equity shares of Rs.10 each 9,850.00 9,850.00

1,46,50,000 [March 31, 2023 : 1,46,50,000] preference shares of Rs.100 each 14,650.00 14,650.00
24,500.00 24,500.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

9,82,38,000 [March 31, 2023 : 9,82,38,000] equity shares of Rs.10 each 9,823.80 9,823.80

Total 9,823.80 9,823.80

Notes:

(a)  Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year

Name of Shareholder Numbers Rupees in Lakhs

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

March 31, 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 9,82,38,000 9,823.80

Shares issued during the year = ;

Balance at the end of the year 9,82,38,000 9,823.80

March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 9,82,38,000 9,823.80

Shares issued during the year = =

Balance at the end of the year 9,82,38,000 9,823.80

Preference shares of Rs. 100 each [Refer Note No.10(c) ]

March 31, 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,46,46,040 14,646.04

Shares issued during the year = =

Balance at the end of the year 1,46,46,040 14,646.04

March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,46,46,040 14,646.04

Shares issued during the year 5 & 5

Balance at the end of the year 1,46,46,040 14,646.04

(b)  Terms to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share. The
Company declares and pay dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of director, if any, is subject to the approval of the
shareholder in ensuing Annual General meeting.

In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

The entire equity shares of the company held by GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited (GPUIL), GMR Energy Limited (GEL) and GMR Highways
Limited ( GHWL ) respectively have been pledged with banks against term loan.

(c)  Terms of Preference shares of Rs.100 each

8% (Tax-free) preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up are redeemable, non-cumulative and non-convertible. Preference Shares are
redeemable at par on May 1, 2022. The preference shareholders, however reserve the right to call for buy-out of the Preference shares by the
promoters of the issuer Company or redemption of the preference shares by the company at any time after the expiry of 6 months from the date
of allotment by giving one month notice.

During FY 2022-23, the Board of Directors of the Company had approved the variation of rights, with the consent of Preference and Equity
Shareholders, associated with the preference shares of the Company from 8% (Tax-free) Redeemable Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Preference
shares to 8% (Tax-free) Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) to be converted on or before August 31, 2027 at a ratio
of 1:10. These CCPS has been disclosed as instruments entirely equity in nature.

These preference shares are fully subordinated to all amounts payable by issuer to the consortium lenders. Refer note no. 11 and 12 for equity and
liabilities portion of Preference Shares.
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(d)  Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company

Name of Shareholder

Numbers % of Holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
March 31, 2024
GMR Highways Limited 5,07,42,720 51.65%
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited 2,32,72,687 23.69%
GMR Energy Limited 2,42,22,593 24.66%
March 31, 2023
GMR Highways Limited 5,07,42,720 51.65%
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited 2,32,72,687 23.69%
GMR Energy Limited 2,42,22,593 24.66%
Preference shares of Rs.100 each [Refer Note No.10(c) |
March 31, 2024
GMR Highways Limited 1,45,80,040 99.55%
March 31, 2023
GMR Highways Limited 1,45,80,040 99.55%
(e)  Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates
Name of Shareholder Numbers  Rupees in Lakhs
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
March 31, 2024
GMR Highways Limited 5,07,42,720 5,074.27
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited 2,32,72,687 2,327.27
GMR Energy Limited 2,42,22,593 2,422.26
March 31, 2023
GMR Highways Limited 5,07,42,720 5,074.27
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited 2,32,72,687 2,327.27
GMR Energy Limited 2,42,22,593 2,422.26
Preference shares of Rs.100 each [Refer Note No.10(c) ]
March 31, 2024
GMR Highways Limited 1,45,80,040 14,580.04
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited 66,000 66.00
March 31, 2023
GMR Highways Limited 1,45,80,040 14,580.04
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited 66,000 66.00
(f) Shares in the Company held by Promoters at the end of the year:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 % Change during
Name: ot Snareholter No. of Shares % of holding No. of Shares % of holding the year
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
GMR Highways Limited 5,07,42,720 51.65% 5,07,42,720 51.65% 0.00%
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited 2,32,72,687 23.69% 2,32,72,687 23.69% 0.00%
GMR Energy Limited 2,42,22,593 24.66% 2,42,22,593 24.66% 0.00%
Preference shares of Rs.100 each [Refer Note No.10(c) ]
GMR Highways Limited 1,45,80,040 99.55% 1,45,80,040 99.55% 0.00%
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited 66,000 0.45% 66,000 0.45% 0.00%

(8)  As per records of the Company including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from share holders

regarding beneficial interest, the above share holding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

(h)  The Company has not issued shares for consideration other than cash, during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting

date.
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11 Other equity

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Instruments classified as entirely equity in nature

8% Non-Cumulative Compuisorily Convertible Preference (CCPS) [Refer Note No.10]

Opening balance 14,646.04 .
Add: Addition during the year [Refer Note No.10(c) ] z 14,646.04
Closing balance 14,646.04 14,646.04
2,11,214 [March 31, 2023: Nil] 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures Of Rs.

10,000 each [Refer note (b) below]

Opening balance s “
Add: Addition during the year 21,121.40

Closing balance 21,121.40 -
Equity component of Preference shares

Opening balance 10,019.69 10,019.69
Add: Adjustment for the year - =
Less: Transferred to retained earnings on conversion to CCPS (10,019.69)

Closing balance - 10,019.69
Equity component of loan from related parties

Opening balance 6,738.59 6,738.59
Add: Adjustment for the year - -
Less: Related party Loan equity portion transferred to CCDs {1,173.11) -
Less: Transferred to retained earnings on closure of related parties loans (5,065.63) -
Closing balance 499.85 6,738.59
Surplus / (deficit) in the statement of Profit and Loss - -
Opening balance (66,774.09) (63,147.95)
Add: Loss for the year (2,724.04) (3,626.14)
Add: Transferred from Equity component of Preference shares 10,019.69 -
on conversion of Preference Shares into 8% CCPS

Add: Transferred from Equity component of loan from related 5,065.63 -
parties on conversion to CCDs

Closing balance (54,412.81) (66,774.09)
Other comprehensive income g z
Opening balance 4.18 (2.84)
Remeasurements gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans, net of tax effect (0.24) 7.02
Closing balance 3.94 4.18
Total (18,141.58) (35,365.59)

Nature and purpose of reserve:
a) Retained Earnings

Retained Earnings represents the amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends considering the requirements of the Companies Act,

2013. No dividends are distributed by the Company.
b) 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures

The Company issued 2,11,214, 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD) to GMR Highways Limited of Rs. 10,000 each aggregaring to Rs.
21,121.40 Lakhs by utilisation of the interest free unsecured loan and sponsor support. The issue of CCDs are in compliance with the
implementation of the Resolution Plan as detailed in Note No. 12(a) . These CCDs shall be converted into 1,000 equity shares of face value of Rs, 10
each based on the valuation report of the Registered valuer. within 5 years from the date of issue i.e., Februrary 12, 2024 (Shareholders approval
date). These CCDs has been disclosed as instruments entirely equity in nature.

¢) Equity component of related party transactions

Equity Component of Related Party Transactions represents the difference in carrying value and fair value of Preference Shares issued to and loans
taken from its holding company, fellow subsidiary and associates on initial recognition. Fair value is determined by discounting the estimating the
cash flows expected over the term of the instrument using an applicable discount rate. The equity component of related party transactions are
adjusted to the carrying amount on account of extinguishment of liability.

d) Other Comprehensive Income : represents Re-measurement gains {Iosses_} on defined benefit plans and its Income Tax Effects.
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12 Borrowings

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Non Current borrowings:
Secured, at amortized cost

72,810 [March 31, 2023: Nil] 0.01% Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs. 10,000 each [Refer note (a) below] 5,551.55

Rupee Term Loan from banks [Refer note (a) below] 10,320.85 13,478.77

Unsecured, at amortized cost
Liability component of compound financial instruments

Liability portion of loan from related parties [Refer note no. 41 and (b) below] 662.84 6,611.70
Unsecured, at amortized cost

Loans from related parties [Refer note no. 41 and (c) below] 6,163.38 6,163.38
Total of Non Current borrowings (A) 22,698.62 26,253.85

Current borrowings

Unsecured, at amortized cost

Current maturities of Rupee Term Loan from banks [Refer note (a) below] - 6,112.27
Loans from related parties [Refer note no. 41 and (c) below] 266,53 266.53
Unsecured, at amortized cost

Liability component of compound financial instruments

Negative government grants [Refer note no. 31 and (d) below] - 2,462.85
Total of Current borrowings (B) 266.53 8,841.65
Total (A)+(B) 22,965.15 35,095.50
Notes:

(a)  Terms of rupee term loan from bank:

The Company had been facing financial stress due to Covid-19 pandemic and other factors as detailed in note no. 31 and 33 resulting in the
borrowing facilities of the Company becoming Special Mention Account - 2 and accordingly Company had proposed resolution process under
Prudential Framework for Resolution of Stressed Assets, as prescribed by RBI Circular {(“Prudential Framework”) dated June 7, 2019.

The lead lender had issued a sanction letter dated April 29, 2023 for restructuring of loan facilities w.e.f., December 1, 2021. As per the RBI Circular
stated above, a minimum of approval of lenders representing 75% by value of total outstanding loan facilities and 60% of Lenders by number is
required for approval of Resolution Plan. The Company received the approvals from the aforesaid requisite lenders on the Resolution Plan and
consequently the Resolution Plan was adopted in the Board of Directors meeting dated September 22, 2023. Accordingly, the Company has given
effect to the Resolution Plan and have recognised a gain on restructuring of Rs. 2,908.03 Lakhs, which is disclosed as an exceptional item in the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

The broad contours of the Resolution Plan are as follows:

i) Borrowing facilities pertaining to Term Loans as on December 1, 2021 have been bifurcated into Sustainable Debt (70%) and Unsustainable
Debt (30%). The Unsustainable Debt has been converted into 0.01% Non-convertible Debentures (NCD).

i) The interest rate has been fixed at 8.70% per annum for Sustainable Debt with effect from December 1, 2021.

iii) Waiver of differential interest pertaining to Sustainable Debt (@ 2.70% per annum being difference between pre-restructuring interest of
11.40% per annum and post-restructuring interest at 8.70% per annum) and Unsustainable Debt (@11.39% per annum being difference
between pre-restructuring interest of 11.40% per annum and post-restructuring interest at 0.01% per annum) from December 1, 2021 to
December 31, 2023. The lenders have right to recompense in future in case of any surplus.

Pursuant to the implementation of Resolution Plan, the Company issued 72,810 unlisted 0.01% Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) of face value
Rs. 10,000 per Debenture which carried interest rate of 0.01% per annum payable annually. NCDs is repayable at the end of the loan term i.e.,
March 31, 2028.

Pursuant to the implementation of Resolution Plan, the term loan from banks of Rs. 10,320.85 Lakhs carries effective interest rate of 8.70% and
interest is payable on monthly basis. The term loans from bank shall be repayable in 25 quarterly installments commencing from March 31, 2022
and ending on March 31, 2028.
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Terms of Security

The loan is securad

i) by way of pari passu first charge over company's immovable properties & movable properties, both present and future, including plant and
machinery.

ii) by way of Borrowers operating cash flows, book debts and all the receivables and revenue from project, all current assets,
other revenues of whatsoever nature.

iii) by way of charge over present and future Intangible assets.

iv) by the rights, title, interest, benefit, claims, of the company in respect of the project agreements executed / to be executed, applicable permits,
insurance policies both present and future, and all rights, title, interest, benefit, claims, demands of the company in respect of monies lying to the
credit of trust and retention account and other accounts.

v) by way of pledge of 100% equity shares of the company held by GMR Power and urban Infra Limited (GPUIL), GMR Energy Limited (GEL) and
GMR Highways Limited ( GHWL ) respectively.

vi) Corporate guarantee of GMR Holdings Pvt Ltd for the shortfall in amount payable in respect of the facility on account of concessionaire event of
default.

commission and any

(b)  Liability portion of loan from related parties:

Loans from group Company (unsecured) includes i) an Interest free unsecured loan of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023 : Rs.7,753.00 Lakhs) from GMR
Highways Limited. The same is subordinated to term loans availed and and shall be repayable after final settlement date of Rupee Term Loans as
per the financial agreements entered into with Lenders, ii) an Interest free unsecured loan of Rs.771.95 Lakhs (March 31, 2023 : Rs.771.95 Lakhs)

from GMR Generation Assets Pvt Ltd. The same is subordinated to term loans availed and shall be repayable after final settlement date of Rupee
Term Loans as per the financial agreements entered into with Lenders.

Interest free Loans from Group Companies are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract. On receipt of the
loan, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent instrument. This amount is classified as a
financial liability measured at amortised cost {net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished. The remainder of the proceeds is recognised and
included in equity.

The interest free unsecured loan amounting to Rs. 7,753.00 Lakhs has been converted into 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Debenture in terms of
the approved resolution plan. Refer Note No. 11(b).

(c)  Loan from related parties:

i)The Company had availed loan of Rs. 530.00 Lakhs and Rs. 1,879.00 Lakhs from GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited (GTTEL)
bearing interest at the rate of 8.50% and 9.00% p.a. respectively.

The Company had also availed loan of Rs. 3,353.00 Lakhs and Rs. 401.38 Lakhs from GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Limited (GTAEL) carrying
interest at the rate of 9.00% and 10.00% p.a. respectively.

GTAEL and GTTEL were merged with GMR Highways Limited (GHWL) and the loans stands taken over by GHWL. Since, GHWL is the sponsor /
promoter and in terms of the facility agreement any loan from promoter cannot be repaid till all the borrowings from lenders are repaid
accordingly the terms of repayment of these loans has been changed to payable after August 31, 2027 and the loan along with interest accrued has
been disclosed as non current. The management of the Company is of the view that since these loans were taken over by GHWL by virtue of
merger are at fair value and no discounting has been considered necessary.

Current

i) An Unsecured loan of Rs. 266.53 Lakhs bearing interest rate of 10.00% p.a. from GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited and shall be repayable
on or before December 29, 2024.

Company had taken short term loans from related parties for its business purpose and period of loan is for a period of 12 months which are

renewed based on the needs of working capital requirements. The same are treated current borrowings based on the management understanding
and the original terms of the borrowing.

(d)  Deferred Payment of negative grant

In accordance with the terms of the Concession Agreement entered into with National Highways Authority of India (NHAI), dated November 16,
2005, the company has an obligation to pay an amount of Rs. 17,475.20 Lakhs by way of Negative Grant over the concession period. The total
value of Negative Grant has been recognized in the financials by way of capitalization in the cost of carriageway and a corresponding obligation has
been created towards Deferred Payment. Balance negative grant of Rs. 6,640.60 Lakhs were due in instalments (ie., Rs. 1,747.50 Lakhs, Rs.
1,747.50 Lakhs, Rs. 2,621.30 Lakhs and Rs. 524.30 Lakhs were due in August 2013, August 2014, August 2015 and August 2016 respectively).NHAI
had issued letters to the Escrow Banker for releasing the amount of Negative Grant including interest and the Escrow Banker has released an
amount of Rs.608.00 Lakhs on October 9, 2020 to NHAI towards Negative Grant. The Company has paid the negative grant in entireity during the
year. For further details refer Note 30.

L.
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13 Lease Liabilities

14

Operating lease commitments - Company as a Lessee : The Company has entered into certain cancellable and
agreements mainly for office premises. The lease rentals paid during
operating lease payable are as follows:

non-cancellable operating lease
the year and the maximum obligation on the long term non-cancellable

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023:

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-current lease liabilities 10.03 21.64
Current lease liabilities 11.61 9.75
Total 21.64 31.39

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities:

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Less than one year 13.40 12,76
One to five years 10.41 23.81
More than five years " =
Total 23.81 36.57

The Company does not expect any liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities and these obligations would be met as and when they fall due.

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 11.43 2.81
Interest on lease liabilities 3.01 0.92
Total 14.44 3.73

Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows:
Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Repayment of lease liability 12.76 3.15
Total 12.76 3.15

The Company has paid a lease rental of Rs, 8.01 Lakhs (March 31, 2023 : Rs.15.39 Lakhs) against short - term leases and has accounted as Rent
under Other expenses refer note number 25 ,

Provisions
Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Non-current:

Provision for Gratuity [Refer note no.38(b)] 117.37 4,52
Provision for contingencies towards right to recompense [Refer Note No. (d) below] 2,763.66 -
Sub Total (A) 2,881.03 4.52
Current:

Provision for other employee benefits 72.25 11.59
Provision for Leave encashment 112.09 13.84
Provision for contingencies [Refer note no. 30({iii)] 1,004.07 2,101.47
Provision for Superannuation 1.03 0.19
Provision for periodic major maintenance [Refer note nos. (a) & (b) below] 841.87 1,674.57
Sub Total (B) 2,031.31 3,801.66
Total (A)+(B) 4,912.34 3,806.18

L
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Note:
a) Provision for periodic major maintenance (overlay activities)
The Company has a contractual obligation to maintain, replace or restore infrastructure,
obligation is measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at

except for any enhancement element. Cost of such
the balance sheet date and recognised over the

period at the end of which the overlay is estimated to be carried out. 15th year Major Overlay activities is expected to be completed in FY 2023-24.
The Company has initiated the Overlay work in certain stretches due to the instruction from NHAI which has been considered to be the part of

MMR which should have been incurred during FY 2023-24 for the purposes of over lay provisions,

b) Movement of provision for periodic major maintenance

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Non-current Current Non-current Current
Opening Balance - 1,674.57 862.11 1,142.58
Add : Accretion during the year - 954.39 886.70 -
Add : Unwinding Interest on major maintenance provision - - 354.41 -
Adj : Transferred from non-current to current - (2,103.22) 2,103.22
Less : Utilised during the year (1,787.09) - (1,571.23)
Closing Balance - 841.87 - 1,674.57

c) Provision for contingencies

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Opening Balance - 2,101.47 - 1,377.25
Add: Provision made during the year 2,763.66 127.61 E 724.22
Less: Utilised/ reversed during the year - (1,225.01) - -
Closing Balance 2,763.66 1,004.07 - 2,101.47

d) The Company has provided for right to recompense on a estimate of surplus available based on the estimation of receipt of claims from NHAI in

terms its resolution plan referred to in Note No. 12(a).

15 Trade payables

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Current:
Carried at amortised cost:

Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises [Refer Note nos (a) to (d) below] 51.52 156.56
Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises [Refer Note nos (b) & (c) below]

Payable to related parties [Refer note no. 41] 341.18 265.24

Dues to others 229.46 278.82
Total 622.16 700.62
Total 622.16 700.62
Notes:

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) Details of dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Dues to related parties [Refer note no.41] - 43.37
Dues to others 51.52 113.19
Total 51.52 156.56

b) The fair value of Trade payables is not materially different from the carrying value presented.
¢) Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and arenormally settled on 60 days terms subject to fund avaiability thereof.

1
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d) The Management is in continuous process of obtaining confirmations from its vendors regarding their registrations under the provisions of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act). Under the MSMED Act, 2006 which came into force with effect from
October 2, 20086, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. On the basis of information and
records available with the company, the following disclosures are made for the amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. Further, in
view of the management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provision of the Act are not expected to be
material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act,

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) i) The principal amount due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting 51.52 156.56
year (net of amount written back)

a) ii) The interest amount due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting - -
year

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the <
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

¢) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been - -
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the

MSMED Act, 2006)*

d) The amount of interest accrued but not accounted in the books and remaining unpaid at the end of 13.65 0.89
accounting year; and*

€) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the - -
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a

deductible expenditure under section 23.

* In the absence of any demand towards the interest for delayed payment from MSMED vendors the interest disclosed above does not include the
interest accrued on the delayed payment where vendors have already been paid.
e) Trade payables ageing schedule

For the year ended March 31, 2024 Rupees in Lakhs
Paitieilars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Not Due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME - 14.60 15.45 21.47 - 51.52

(ii) Others 7.56 324.68 213.16 8.69 16.56 570.65
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME o < = =~
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - = z o "

For the year ended March 31, 2023 Rupees in Lakhs
: Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
il Not Due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME 105.48 51.08 - - - 156.56
(i) Others 169.45 347.86 10.10 16.65 - 544.06

(iif) Disputed Dues - MSME - & A 4 % 2
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - & 2 o = =

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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17

Other financial liabilities

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Non Current:

Interest accrued but not due on loan from related parties [Refer note no.41and 12(c) ] 3,916.67 3,582.41
Sub Total (A) 3,916.67 3,582.41
Current:
Other Payable
-Related Party [Refer note no. 41] 67.50 10,153.69
-Other - 3.27
Interest accrued and due on term loans - 606.56
Interest accrued and due on NCDs 0.09 E
Interest accrued but not due on CCDs 0.22 -
Interest accrued but not due on loan from related parties [Refer note no.41] 79.06 55.01
Sub Total (B) 146.87 10,818.53
Total (A)+(B) 4,063.54 14,400.94

Other current liabilities

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current:

Advance received from Customers 53.52 38.83
Statutory dues 75.67 58.64
Total 129.19 97.47
Total 129.19 97.47

Note : - the Company is in the process of reconciling the outstanding balances with vendors and any changes in the balance upon reconciliation
shall be given effect in the ensuing year and the management is of the opinion that there will not be any significant effect on such reconciliation.

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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Income Tax

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31,

18.01 Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:

2024 and, March 31, 2023

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Profit or loss section

Current Tax

Deferred Tax

Tax expense / (credit) to Statement of Profit and Loss

Other comprehensive income section (ocn

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans

Tax expense / (credit) to Other Comprehensive Income

Tax expense / (credit) to Total Comprehensive Income

18.02 Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023:

18.03

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Loss for the year before taxation

(2,725.86) (3,626.14)

Applicable tax rate 26.00% 26.00%
Tax effect of income / (loss) (a) (708.72) (942.80)
Adjustments:
Tax effect on non-taxable income (0.06) (166.81)
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses (19.34) 189.65
Tax effect on difference In carry forward losses 272.34 827.93
Tax expense / (credit) to Statement of Profit and Loss (b) 252.94 850.77

(c)=(a+h) (455.78) (92.03)
Deferred tax not is recognised on brought forward unused tax (d) 455.78 92.03
losses and allowances [Refer note no.18.04 (a) below]
Tax expense / (credit) to Total Comprehensive Income (e)=(c+d) - -
Effective tax rate (e)/PBT 0.00% 0.00%

Non-current tax assets / Provision for Income tax (net)

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance - Provision for Income tax / (Non-current tax assets) (4.79) (18.72)
Add: Current tax payable for the period/ year - -
Add: Earlier year tax reversed (1.82) -
Add: Interest on Income Tax refund (0.26) (0.89)
Less: Refund received/ (Current taxes paid) (Net) 5.73 14.82
Closing balance - Provision for Income tax / (Non-current tax assets) (1.14) (4.79)
Breakup = =
Provision for Income tax (net) - 5
Non-current tax assets (1.14) (4.79)
Total (1.14) (4.79)
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Income Tax

18.04 Major components of deferred tax assets and liabilties for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023:
Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars As at For the year As at For the year As at

April 01, 2022 2022-23 March 31, 2023 2023-24 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax liability
Carriageways 5,478.47 (369.27) 5,109.20 (615.89) 4,493.31
Right of use assets net off lease liability - 0.01 0.01 (0.44) (0.43)
Borrowings 8.10 (3.52) 4.58 454,73 4559.31
Equity Component of preference shares 2,605.12 - 2,605.12 (2,605.12) -
Equity Component of loan from related parties 1,752.03 - 1,752.03 (1,622.07) 129.96
Total (a) 9,843.72 (372.78) 9,470.94 (4,388.79) 5,082.15
Deferred tax asset
Property, plant and equipments and intangible 7.87 0.14 8.01 (0.10) 7.91
assets
Liability portion of preference shares 2,572.43 32.69 2,605.12 (2,605.12) -
Loan from related parties 1,088.67 165.92 1,254.59 (1,153.00) 101.59
Provision for major maintenance 521.22 (85.83) 435.39 (216.50) 218.89
Provision for Leave Encashment 5.20 (1.60) 3.60 25.54 29.14
Provision for gratuity / (plan assets) 2.1 (1.03) 1.18 25.34 30.52
Provision for bonus 2.92 0.09 3.01 15.78 18.79
Provision for contingencies - - - 718.55 718.55
Principalisation of interest on rupee term loan 298.27 - 298.27 - 298.27
Unused tax losses 5,690.15 (390.94) 5,299.21 (750.65) 4,548.56
Unabsorbed tax depreciation 9,472.94 (0.19) 9,472.75 3.15 9,475.90
Total (b) 19,661.88 (280.75) 19,381.13 (3,933.01) 15,448.12
Net deferred tax (assets) / liability {c)=(a-b) (9,818.16) (92.03) (9,910.19) (455.78) (10,365.97)
Deferred tax asset is not recognised (d) 9,818.16 92.03 9,910.19 455,78 10,365.97

[Refer note (a) below]
Net deferred tax (assets) / liability (e)=(c+d) - - - - -

Note:

a) The Company, being Infrastructure Company, enjoys the benefit of tax holiday period for 10 years out of first 20 years of operations. In
initial years of operations, the Company has incurred losses and hence had not claimed the benefit of tax holiday period. The Management
expects that all temporary differences as well as unused tax losses will be reversing in tax holiday period under section 80IA of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 in view of expected future profits and accordingly, the company has not recognised the resulting deferred tax asset/liability
that is expected to reverse during the tax holiday period.

18.05 The unused business loss and allowances is allowable in future period against taxable profit as follows:

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Unused depreciation allowances available for 36,445.75 36,433.67
future taxable profit for unlimited period

Unused business loss available for future taxable profit upto:

Relating to Assessment vear Available upto Assessment year

2016-17 2024-25 Lapsed 442.02
2018-19 2026-27 2,934.99 2,934.99
2019-20 2027-28 3,617.67 3,617.67
2020-21 2028-29 1,683.60 1,683.60
2021-22 2029-30 4,232.16 4,232.16
2022-23 2030-31 5,803.52 5,803.52
2023-24 2031-32 1,062.17 1,667.59
2024-25 2032-33 (1,839.66) =

18.06 The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax ass
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
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Revenue from operations

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Toll Income from Expressways 8,114.63 7,149.97
Total 8,114.63 7,149.97

Disaggregate revenue information for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023:

The Company has presented disaggregated revenue from contracts with customers (under service concession arrangements) for the year ended
March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 by offerings and is of the opinion that, this disaggregation best depicts the nature, amount, timing of revenues
and cash flows that are affected by the industry markets and other economic factors,

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Revenue by offering
Income from toll collection 8,114.63 7,149.97

The Company has not identified any disaggregated revenues based on contract types.

Performance obligations:

The performance obligation provides the aggregate amount of transaction price yet to be recognised as at end of the reporting period and an
explanation as to when the Company expects to recognise these amounts in revenue. The Company during the year has applied the practical
expedient given in Ind AS 115 for the disclosure of remaining performance obligations and based on its analysis of service concession arrangements
outstanding as on March 31, 2024 has not identified any remaining performance obligations and accordingly there are no disclosures given in
respect of service concession arrangements, as the toll revenue recognised corresponds directly with the value to the customer arising out of toll

road service,

Other income

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Interest Income

-on Bank Deposit 9.23 -

-on Income Tax Refund 0.26 0.89
Unwinding interest on security deposits 0.19 0.04
Excess provision/ liabilities written back 49.19 11.81
Other non-operating income 0.98 9.01
Total 59.85 21.75

Operating expenses

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Sub-contracting expenses and Concession fee

1,467.61

1,500.02

Total

1,467.61

1,500.02

Details of sub-contracting and concession fee expenses

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Highway Maintenance Expenses 221.09 296.45
Concession fee [Rs.1, (March 31, 2023 : Rs.1/-)] - -
Toll/Highway Management Services 292.13 316.87
Major Maintenance expenses 954.39 886.70
Total 1,467.61 1,500.02
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Employee benefit expenses

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Salaries, Perquisites & Allowance

663.29 133.79
Contribution to provident and other funds 24.66 9.78
Gratuity expense 11.28 3.05
Staff welfare expenses 3.72 4.73
Total 702.95 151.35
Finance cost

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Interest measured at amortised cost
Interest on term loans from banks & NCDs issued to banks

1,483.80 2,652.24
Interest on loan from related parties [Refer note no.41] 1,215.35 1,220.85
Interest on Debentures 0.24
Interest others 130.62 1,205.56
Other borrowing cost 92.30 48.08
Total 2,922.31 5,126.73

Details of finance cost (Interest measured at amortised cost)

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Interest on debts and borrowings

Interest on NCD 188.35 -

Interest on term loans from banks 1,295.45 2,652.24
Interest on loan from related parties

Interest on loan from related parties [Refer note no.41] 584.32 582.72

Unwinding interest on loan from related parties [Refer note no.41] 631.03 638.13

Interest on CCD 0.24
Interest others

Unwinding interest on liability portion of preference shares [Refer note no.41] - 125.71

Unwinding Interest on major maintenance provision - 354.41

Interest on Lease liabilities 3.01 0.92

Interest on delay in payment of statutory dues - 0.30

Interest on delay in payment of Negative Grant 127.61 724.22
Other borrowing cost

Bank and other finance charges 92.30 48.08
Total 2,922.31 5,126.73
Depreciation and amortization expense

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 11.69 12.39
Amortization of right of use assets 11.43 2.81
Amortization of intangible assets 5,090.91 4,134.90
Total 5,114.03 4,150.10
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Other expenses

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Consumption of Stores and Spares

16.92 15.35
Utility Expenses (including Electricity charges) 106.02 106.40
Rent 8.01 15.39
Logo fees 0.01 0.01
Rates and Taxes 4.97 1.92
Insurance 78.45 80.21
Repairs and maintenance
- Building 0.18 4
- Others 46.55 38.91
Vehicle running expense 16.94 15.55
Travelling and conveyance 3458 2291
Communication costs 4.53 3.54
Printing and stationery 1.13 1.07
Legal and professional fees 464.77 312.00
Manpower Outsourcing 28.45 26.30
Directors’ sitting fees 2.07 1.89
Staff recruitment and training cost 0.02 -
Sundry Balances written off 0.09 55.00
Loss on sale of assets - 0.57
Bank charges 1.25 1.44
Payment to auditors [Refer note no. (a) below] 11.03 11.80
Advertisement and business promotion 0.95 1.34
Meeting and Seminar 0.40 -
Books and Periodicals 0.01 0.03
Miscellaneous Expense 10.49 28.53
Total 837.82 740.16
Notes: Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Details of payment to auditors
Statutory audit fee 6.90 6.90
Tax audit fee 1.18 1.18
Certification charges 2.95 3.72
Total 11.03 11.80
Exceptional ltems
Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Claim received from NHAI towards Force Majeure [Refer note no.33] - 870.50
Gain / (loss) on account of restructuring of borrowings [refer note no. 12(a) |. 2,908.03 4
Provision for right to recompense on restructuring of borrowings [refer note no. 14(d)]. {2,763.65) .
Total 144.38 870.50
Earning per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/ (Loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. There is no dilutive potential ordinary shares as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023. Thus,

diluted EPS equals basic EPS.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

a) Nominal value of Equity shares (in Rupees per share)

b) Weighted average number of Equity shares at the end of year (in Nos)

d) Basic/Diluted Earning per share of Rs 10/- each (in Rs.) [(c}/(b]] Vi N

10.00
9,82,38,000

(2,724.04)
(2.77)

10.00

9,82,38,000
(3,626.14)
(3.69)




GMR AMBALA-CHANDIGARH EXPRESSWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45203KA2005PTC036773

Notes to Financial Statements

28 Disclosures on Financial Instruments

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instrumen

ts for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet

items that contain financial instruments,

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and

expenses are recognised in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Notes to the financial
statements.

28.01

28.02

Financial instruments by category

Financial instruments comprise financial assets and financial liabilities.

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories are as follows Rupees in Lakhs
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Refe Amortised cost  Fair value Fairvalue  Amortised cost  Fair value Fair value
i r through profit through OcCI through profit through OCI
note or loss or loss
Financial assets:
Receivable from NHAI 5 5.63 - - 6.22 E -
Cash and cash equivalents 8 488.77 - - 240.66 - -
Other bank balances 9 520.00 - - - - -
Other financial assets 5 72.79 - - 46.37 - -
Total 1,087.19 - - 293,25 - -
Financial liabilities:
Borrowings (including interest 12&1¢ 15,872.49 - - 20,197.60 - 2
accrued)
Liability component of preference 12 - ¥ - = = .
share capital
Loan from group companies 12 11,088.48 - - 16,679.03 - -
(including interest accrued)
Lease Liabilities 13 21.64 - - 31.39 - -
Trade payables 15 622.16 - - 700.62 - -
Negative grant payable 12 - - - 2,462.85 - -
Other financial liabilities 16 67.72 - - 10,156.96 - -
Total 27,672.49 - - 50,228.45 - -
Fair values

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
The fair values of The unquoted mutual funds are based on NAV available at The reporting date.

Fair value hierarchy

The Company held the following assets and liabilities measured at fair value. The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining
and disclosing the fair value of assets and liabilities by valuation technique

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3: valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable.

a) The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31,
2024:

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss: . - - -
Liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss: - - - -

b) The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31,
2023:

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss: - L % £
Liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss: - -
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During the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements,
and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

The Board of Directors considers the fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities to approximate their carrying value at the balance
sheet date.

In view of all financial assets and liabilities are carried at amortised cost, there are no financial assets and liabilities to be fair valued under
fair value hierarchy.

29 Financial risk management

Financial Risk Factors

The Company's principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets is Receivable under Service concession agreement, Cash and Cash
equivalents and other bank balance.

In the course of its business, the Company's exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company's senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a audit committee that advises on financial risks and the
appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The company's senior management ensure that the company's financial risk
activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with

the company's policies and risk objectives. The risk management policy is approved by the Board of Directors. The risk management frame work
aims to :

i) create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate fluctuation on the Company's business
plans.

i) achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earnings in advance.

29.01 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, and derivative financial instruments. The sensitivity analysis in the
following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement
obligations, provisions.
The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the

financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt

obligations with floating interest rates. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.

The Company analysis its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. The Company's policy is to manage its interest cost using only interest

free/ fixed rate debts from related parties.

Interest rate sensitivity:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of external loans and

borrowings affected. 50 basis points represents management's assessment of reasonably possible change in interest rate. With all other

variables held constant, the Company’s profit/(loss) before tax is affected through the impact interest rate of borrowings is as follows:
Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Type of Increase/ Effect on profit before tax Effect on total equity
currency decrease in March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
basis points 2024 2023 2024 2023
Increase of profit INR (+)50 61.45 65.50 61.45 65.50
Decrease of profit INR (-)50 (61.45) (65.50) (61.45) (65.50)

29.02 Commodity price risk
The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities which is moderated by optimising the procurement for operating
activities which require continuous procurement of road operation and maintenance materials. Therefore, the Company monitors its
purchases closely to optimise the price.




GMR AMBALA-CHANDIGARH EXPRESSWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45203KA2005PTC036773

Notes to Financial Statements

29.03 Credit risk

29.04

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss.

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period other than those under litigation, and management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these counterparties.

Credit risk from balances with bank and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the
Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each

counterparty. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s
potential failure to make payments.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks and financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment in liquid mutual
fund units for a specified time period.

The carrying values of the financial assets approximate its fair values. The above financial assets are not impaired as at the reporting date.
Other financial assets are neither past due nor impaired at reporting date. The cash and cash equivalents are maintained with reputed
banks. Hence the Company believes no impairment is necessary in respect of the above financial instruments.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial cbligations as they fall due. The Company's approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they become due without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. The Company's treasury department is
responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity reserve on the basis of expected cash flow. This is generally carried out
at by the Company in accordance with practice and limits set by the Company. In addition, the Company’s liquidity management policy
involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these; monitoring balance
sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements; and maintaining debt financing plans. The Company also
issues preference shares to the parent company/ group companies from time to time to ensure a liquidity balance.

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations and
borrowing from group companies. The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements.

As at March 31, 2024, the Company had a negative working capital of Rs. 1,879.85 Lakhs including cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 488.77
Lakhs. As at March 31, 2023, the Company had a negative working capital of Rs. 23,858.75 Lakhs including cash and cash equivalents of Rs.
240.66 Lakhs.The holding company has given assurity to the company for providing financial support for meeting its day to day
operations and financial liabilities payable to borrowers, vendors and other parties.

For the purpose of Working capital, we have considered total current assets + Assets held for sale - total current liabilities — Liabilities
related to assets held for sale.

The following are the contractual maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities, including the estimated interest payment on an

undiscounted basis which therefore differs from both carrying value and fair value. Floating rate interest is estimated using the prevailing
interest rate at the year end.

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Financial Total amount Repayableon Due within1 Due between Due after 5
liabilities payable demand year 1to 5 years years
carrying value

As at March 31, 2024

External Borrowings 15,872.40 17,638.98 - - 17,638.98 =
Interest accrued on term loan 0.09 - - - E -
Loan from group companies 7,092.75 7,201.86 - 266.53 6,935.33 -
Interest accrued on loan from related 3,995.95 3,995.95 - 75.06 3,916.89 -
parties

Lease Liabilities 21.64 23.81 - 13.40 10.41 -
Trade payable 622.16 622.16 - 622.16 “ A
Other financial liabilities 67.50 67.50 67.50 - - -
Total 27,672.49 29,550.26 67.50 981.15 28,501.61 =
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29.1

29.06

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Financial Total amount Repayableon Due within 1 Due between  Due after 5
liabilities payable demand year 1to5 years years
carrying value
As at March 31, 2023
External Borrowings 19,591.04 19,608.66 - 6,122.64 13,486.02 -
Interest accrued on term loan 606.56 606.56 606.56 - - -
Preference shares - - - - - 5
Loan from group companies 13,041.61 14,954.86 - 266.53 14,688.33 -
Interest accrued on loan from related 3,637.42 3,637.42 - 55.01 3,582.41 -
parties
Lease Liabilities 31.39 36.57 - 12.76 23.81 -
Trade payable 700.62 700.62 - 700.62 - -
Negative grant payable 2,462.85 2,462.85 2,462.85 - - =
Other financial liabilities 10,156.96 10,156.96 10,156.96 - - -
Total 50,228.45 52,164.50 13,226.37 7,157.56 31,780.57 -

Excessive risk concentration

The Company needs to assess the risks in relation to excessive risk concentr,

such risks.

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities,
region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations
economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the co

affecting a particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the company's

ation and the measures adopted by the Company to mitigate
or activities in the same geographical
to be similarly affected by changes in

mpany's performance to developments

policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the

maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly. Selective hedging
is used within the company to manage risk concentrations at both the relationship and industry levels.

Capital management

The Company’s capital management is intended to create value for shareholders b

goals of the Company.

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, Preference Share,
and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The

is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in li
financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company includes within net debt, borrowi

cash equivalents.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total external debt divided by total capital plus total debt.

y facilitating the meeting of long term and short term

loan from related parties
primary objective of the Company’s capital management

ght of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
ngs, trade and other payables, less cash and

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Debt - External borrowings Including interest accrued (a) 15,872.49 20,197.60
Capital Components
Equity Share Capital 9,823.80 9,823.80
Other equity (18,141.58) (35,365.59)
Liability component of preference share capital - =
Negative Grant - 2,462.85
Loan from group companies Including interest accrued 11,088.48 16,679.03
Total Capital (b) 2,770.70 (6,399.91)
Capital and debt (a+h) 18,643.19 13,797.69
Gearing ratio (%) (a)/(a+h) 85.14% 146.38%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that i
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the

financial

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March

L

2023.

covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial
covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period which has been communicated by th
subsisting as on the balance sheet date.

t meets financial
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Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

Penalty levied by NHAI for delay in first periodic major maintenance and damages for not maintaining 1,014.00 1,014.00
Railway over bridge [Refer note no. (i) below]

Concessional interest rate granted by the lenders of term loan against which company has agreed to 1,746.51 1,925.74
pay additional interest [Refer note no.(ii) below]

Interest on Negative Grant [Refer note no.(iii) below] 6,032.39 6,032.39
Capital Commitments

Notes:

iv)

The Contingent Liabilities are on account of following issues:

. Penalty levied by NHAI for delay in periodic major maintenance Rs. 843.00 Lakhs [March 31, 2023 : Rs. 843.00 Lakhs] and damages for not

maintaining Railway over bridge at Derabassi of Rs. 171.00 Lakhs [March 31, 2023 : Rs.171.00 Lakhs]. The penalty and damages levied by NHAI has
not been accepted by the Company and the Company has referred the issue for mediation with Independent Engineer as per the provisions of the
Concession Agreement which is yet to be concluded. The company does not foresee any outflow of resources in respect of the said litigation.

. In view of the concessional interest rate granted by the lenders of term loan, the company had agreed to pay an additional interest of 0.60% per

annum on the outstanding term loan to banks from August 2010 onwards i.e. Rs. 1,746.51 Lakhs [March 31, 2023 : Rs.1,925.74 Lakhs] if the claims
submitted by the company against NHAI is awarded in its favour on conclusion of the legal proceedings as explained in detail under Note no. 31.

The Company for the year ending March 31, 2024, has given effect to the impact of the resolution plan on the amount so payable up to the date
of implementation as detailed in Note No. 12(a) .

iii. In accordance with the terms of the Concession Agreement entered into with National Highways Authority of India (NHAI), dated November 16,

2005, the Company had an obligation to pay an amount of Rs. 17,475.20 Lakhs by way of Negative Grant over the concession period. The total
value of Negative Grant has been recognized in the financials by way of capitalization in the cost of carriageway and a corresponding obligation
has been created towards Deferred Payment. During earlier years the Company had paid negative grant to NHAI in various instalments and
balance negative grant of Rs. 6,640.60 Lakhs was due and not remitted to NHAI as there was a stay on account of arbitration. The Arbitral Tribunal
on August 26, 2020 while rejecting the company's prayer for compensation for breach of State Support Agreement & Concession Agreement by
State Government of Haryana, State Government of Punjab and NHAI, vacated the stay granted on payment of Negative Grant and NHAI
consequently demanded the payment of negative grant including interest from the Company and the Escrow Banker. The claim by NHAI for
interest communicated to the Company and the Escrow Banker was Rs. 10,134 Lakhs calculated up October 31, 2020, though the interest as
computed by the Company up to August 25, 2020 was Rs. 6,032.39 Lakhs (@SBl PLR plus 2%) which is disclosed as contingent. NHAI has been
demanding the payment of negative grant along with interest calculated at the rate SBI plus 2% and accordingly, the Company discharged the
liability towards Negative Grant of Rs. 6,640.60 Lakhs in entirety.

In terms of the communication to NHAI, the Company has been providing for delay in payment of interest on negative grant based on SBI PLR plus
2% interest rate w.e.f. August 25, 2020, the date of the arbitral award under prudence pursuant to the vacation of stay on payment of Negative
Grant vide Arbitral Award dated August 26, 2020. The same has been disclosed as provision for contingencies, refer Note No. 14. Accordingly, the
Company, up to date of payment of negative grant, has accounted for interest on negative grant as at March 31, 2024 amounting to Rs. 1,004.07
Lakhs, net of payment of Rs. 1,225.01 Lakhs [March 31, 2023 : 2,101.47 Lakhs]. The Company has not accounted for interest estimated up to
August 25, 2020 to the extent of Rs. 6,032.39 Lakhs, (Rs.10,134 Lakhs as per NHAI up to October 31, 2020) for non-payment of Negative Grant in
terms of Concession Agreement as the Management is of the opinion that there is no charge of interest in pursuance of stay given by the Arbitral
Tribunal for period prior to August 26, 2020 and effect, if any, will be given upon the matters attaining finality as the company is of the opinion
that the company’s claim on NHAI for diversion of traffic and interest there on are higher than the counter claim of interest payable on negative
grant as the total claim has to be looked at net effect, considering the favourable order of Hon'ble High Court of Delhi as detailed in Note No. 31.

The Supreme Court (SC) had passed an order dated February 28, 2019 stating that for the purpose of contribution to be made under the
Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1956 ('EPF Act'), the definition of basic wages includes all emoluments paid in cash
to the employees in accordance with the terms of their contract of employment. In view of the same, the Company is liable to make further
contribution towards Provident Fund ('PF') on the entire salary paid by it to its employees other than certain emoluments based on performance
and variable. However, there is no clarity on effective date from when the liability is required to be paid by the Company. As a matter of caution,
the Company has accounted and paid the PF liability in terms of the SC order on a prospective basis from the date of the SC order i.e., April 1,
2019 onwards. The Company further will account and pay the differential PF liability if any, on receiving further clarity on the subject from the
Provident Fund Authorities and the impact if any which in view of the Company is not expected to be material.

s
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Litigation

The Company had invoked arbitration proceedings against National Highways Authority of India (NHAI), State of Haryana (SoH) and State of Punjab
(SoPb) as per the terms of the Concession Agreement dated November 16, 2005 and State Support Agreement dated February 21, 2006 & March 8,
2006 respectively due to continued losses suffered by the Company on account of diversion of traffic to parallel roads developed by SoH and SoPb. The
Company had raised its contention that NHAI, SoH & SoPb has breached the provisions of Concession Agreement dated November 16, 2005, State
Support Agreement dated February 21, 2006 & March 8, 2006 by building parallel highways resulting in loss of traffic to the Company's toll road.

The three member Hon’ble Tribunal vide its order dated August 26, 2020, had pronounced the award wherein majority of the Tribunal had disagreed
with the contention of the Company and had rejected all the claims of the Company.

The Company aggrieved by rejection of all claims by majority members had preferred an appeal, in both Punjab and Haryana matters, under Section 34
& Section 9 of the Arbitration Act before Hon'ble Delhi High Court requesting to stay the Majority Award and grant stay on payment of Negative Grant.
The Hon’ble High Court vide its order dated September 26, 2022 had set aside the Arbitral Award dated August 26, 2020 appealed under section 34 and
has referred the entire dispute back to Arbitration for which the parties are at liberty to re-initiate Arbitration Proceedings as per the Contractual
covenants. The Divisional Bench further had upheld the order of Single Bench vide its order dated September 20, 2023 by rejecting the appeal of NHAI
and SOH.

In the meanwhile, NHAI and SoH has filed SLPs against the order of Divisional Bench before Hon'ble Supreme Court, which is listed on September 2,
2024.

Accordingly, the Management, based on the conclusion and findings arrived by the Hon’ble Delhi High in its order setting aside the Arbitral Award, legal
opinion and internal assessment, is of the opinion that the company has good chances on re-initiation of the arbitration proceedings and it expects to
win the case and to receive the claims in due course. As per the internal assessment by the management which envisages reasonable certainty that the
arbitral claims will flow in to the Company on matter attaining finality and that there will be net cash inflows even if outflow of the Negative Grant or
interest thereon are considered with realisability of the Company's claims in the near future.

The Company has initiated the Arbitration Process and has also appointed its nominee, however NHAI is yet to appoint its nominee, in this regard the
Company has approached the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi for appointment of Arbitrator on behalf of NHAI, SoPb and SoH, in view of the pendency of
the SLPs in the Hon'ble Supreme Court, the matter is listed for hearing on May 22, 2024.

Impairment of assets

The Company, during the year, has reassessed its impairment assessment to arrive at asset's value in use from its expert valuer considering the
probability of winning the appeal in near future. In determining the asset’s value in use, the expert has estimated the future cash flows of the Company
on discounted cash flows basis under various scenarios which is based on various assumptions made by the management which the expert has relied
upon to arrive at the range of values, In estimating the future cash flows, the Company has made key assumption of receipt of cash inflows for claims
for loss due to diversion of traffic/compensation under arbitration award from the financial year 2026-27 and every year thereafter which is critically
dependent upon the company getting a favourable order from the Arbitral tribunal on re-initiation of proceedings based on the direction of the Hon'ble
Delhi High Court Order dated September 26, 2022 and receipt of the award amount. The valuation expert based on these assumptions, had determined
value in use of the Company assets as at December 31, 2023 (i.e., valuation date) which is higher than the carrying value of assets. The management is

confident of receipt of claims for loss due to diversion of traffic/compensation and accordingly is of the opinion that no adjustment to the carrying
value of Carriageway is considered necessary.

Impact of Farmers protest on the business operation of the company

The Company's right to receive the User fee for usage of the toll roads was effected due to the farmers protests from October 12, 2020 to December
14, 2021 wherein the farmers were not allowing for collection of the toll fees. The Company had submitted its claim of Rs.1,518.00 Lakhs for
compensation towards Operation and Maintenance expenses and interest on RTL incurred during October 12, 2020 to December 14, 2021 to NHAI .
Pursuant to the claims filed by the Company, NHAI vide its communication dated October 19, 2022 has approved the claim of Rs. 870.50 Lakhs. Further,
NHAI has also conveyed its approval for extension of concession period by 429 days equal to the period effected by Farmers agitation from the
scheduled completion of the Concession Agreement.

The Company has been discharging interest on debt at the rate ranging from 11.40% to 11.75%, whereas the NHAI had considered interest rate of
8.50% while approving the claim resulting in difference of Rs, 428 lakhs. The Company has filed a communication objecting to the method of calculating
the interest. The Independent engineer has agreed with the claim of the company and recommended the same to NHAI for release of Rs. 428 lakhs,
which is pending approval of NHAI. The Company is confident of receiving the amount of Rs. 428 lakhs as has been recommended by Independent
Engineer from NHAI.

The Company, however, had recognised the approved claim amount of Rs. 870.50 Lakhs as an exceptional items during the year ended March 31, 2023.

During the year as well the toll collection was suspended from February 12, 2024 to March 04, 2024 due to farmers agitation and hence there was a
complete blockage of highway by Ambala district administration. The Company has filed a claim of Rs. 271.84 Lakhs towards loss of revenue with
Independent Engineer, which is pending as on date.
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The Company has been incurring continuous losses due to loss of toll revenue arising as a result of diversion of partial traffic on parallel roads
developed subsequent to bidding of the project resulting in loss of Rs. 2,724.28 Lakhs [March 31, 2023 : Rs. 3,619.12 Lakhs] and the total liabilities of
the company exceeds its total assets by Rs. 8,317.78 Lakhs [March 31, 2023 : Rs. 25,541.79 Lakhs] resulting in erosion of net-worth indicating that there
is a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and therefore, it may be unable to
realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Company’s contention on loss of revenue due to diversion by NHAI, SoH & SoPb by developing parallel highways resulting in loss of traffic to the
Company's toll road has upheld by Hon'ble High Court of Delhi by setting aside the Arbitral Award as detailed in Note No. 31 above. In view of the
same, the Company expects that claim of damages/compensation will be received by the Company upon the matter attaining finality.

The accounts, however have been prepared on a going concern basis in view of the implementation of the resolution plan, assurance of the Holding
Company to provide necessary financial and other assistance for running its operations smoothly in the ensuing year and expected cash flows arising

from claims/compensation from the favourably adjudication of claim proceedings by the arbitral tribunal as fully described to in note number 31 and
30(iii}above.

The Company is engaged primarily in the business of Construction, Operation & Maintenance of Highways. As per the requirements of Ind AS 108, "
Operating Segments", the principal revenue generating activities of the Company is from Construction, Operation & Maintenance of Highways which is
regularly reviewed by the National Highways Authority of India (NHAI). Accordingly, the management is of the view the Company has a single

reportable segment and the requirements of reporting on operating segments and related disclosures as envisaged in Indian Accounting Standard 108
is not applicable to the present activities of the Company.

The Company has initiated the process of obtaining balance confirmations from third parties and has received certain confirmations in the course of its
process in respect of which reconciliatons have been concluded. The Company is following up with the rest of the parties for confirming the balances.
The Management, however, is of the opinion that the balances outstanding as per books of accounts are good and does not expect any significant
differences required to be accounted in the books of the company.

Operating Lease other than those classified under Right of use assets (if any)

The Company has entered into certain cancellable operating lease agreements. Under these agreements refundable interest-free deposits have been
given. The details of lease rentals paid are given below:

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Lease rentals under cancellable lease 8.01 15.39

Employee Benefits
a) Defined Contribution Plans :

The Company's Contribution to Provident, Pension Fund, Superannuation Fund and employee state insurance charged to Statement of Profit and Loss
are as follows :

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Contribution to provident fund and other funds (LWF) 18.00 643
Contribution to Employee State Insurance = 042
Contribution to Superannuation fund 6.67 2.93
Total 24.67 9.78

b) The disclosures required as per the revised Ind AS 19 are as under:
The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements as at March =k b
2024 and March 31, 2023:

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

i. Change in defined benefit obligation

Defined benefit at the beginning 13.51 16.86
Current Service Cost 723 Zrale ]
Past service cost - plan amendments - -

Interest expenses 4.62 1.20
Acquisition Cost/(Credit) 101.33 (7.13)
Remeasurements - Actuarial loss / (gain) 0.24 0.39
Benefits paid d (1.75) -

Defined benefit at the end 125.18 13.51
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Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

vi.

vil.

i. Change in fair value of plan assets:

Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning
Interest income on plan assets
Acquisition Adjustment

Actuarial gains/ (losses)

Contributions by employer

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at the end
Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet
Present Value of Obligation as at year end
Fair Value of plan assets at year end

Net (asset) / liability recognised

. Amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss under employee benefit expenses.

Current Service Cost

Past service cost - plan amendments

Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset)
Total

- Recognised in other comprehensive income for the year

Remeasurement of actuarial gains/(losses) arising from
- changes in experience adjustments
- changes in financial assumption
- changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during the year
- return on plan assets excluding interest income
Actuarial (Gain) or Loss recognized in other comprehensive income
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)
1-2 year
2-3 year
3-4 year
4-5 year
5-10 year
Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below:
Increase / decrease on present value of defined benefit obligation as at year end
(i) one percentage point increase in discount rate
(i) one percentage point decrease in discount rate
(iii) one percentage point increase in salary escalation rate
(iv) one percentage point decrease in salary escalation rate
(v) one percentage point increase in employee turnover rate
(vi) one percentage point decrease in employee turnover rate
Sensitivity Analysis Method

8.99 8.37
0.57 0.34
- (7.13)
= 7.41
(1.75) ;
7.81 8.99
125.18 13.51
(7.81) (8.99)
117.37 4.52
7.23 2.19
4,05 0.86
11.28 3.05
0.24 0.58
- (0.19)
0.24 0.39
= (7.41)
0.24 (7.02)
18.09 0.79
14.75 2.67
6.47 0.95
14.97 1.14
23.70 1.29
48.17 14.53
(6.82) (0.86)
7.61 0.98
7.58 0.98
(6.95) (0.87)
0.29 0.06
(0.32) (0.07)

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit

obligation by percentage, keeping all the other actuarial assumptions constant.
Risk Faced by Company:

The Gratuity scheme is a final salary Defined Benefit Plan that provides for a lump sum payment made on exit either by way of retirement, death,
disability or voluntary withdrawal. The benefits are defined on the basis of final salary and the period of service and paid as lump sum at exit. The

Plan design means the risks commonly affecting the liabilities and the financial results are expected to be:

Interest rate risk : The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined

benefit obligation will tend to increase

Salary Inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation

Demographic risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disability
and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of
salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirement

benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to a long service employee.

L
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viii. The major category of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows;

39

40

c)

Investment with Insurer managed funds - conventional products 100% 100%

The Company contributes all ascertained liabilities towards gratuity to the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). As of March 31, 2024 and
March 31, 2023, the plan assets have been invested in insurer managed funds,

- The weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are set

out below:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount rate 7.00% 7.30%
Rate of return on planned asset 6.34% 4.06%
Salary escalation rate 6.00% 6.00%
Attrition rate 5.00% 5.00%
Normal retirement age 60 years 60 years

Mortality Table Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives

Mortality (2006-08) Mortality (2006-08)
(modified) ULT (modified) ULT

The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The Company expects to contribute Rs.NIL to the gratuity fund during FY 2024-25.

The expected return on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors such as the composition of the plan assets held, assessed
risks of asset management, historical results of the return on plan assets and the Group’s policy for plan asset management. Assumed rate of
return on assets is expected to vary from year to year reflecting the returns on matching Government bonds.

Leave Encashment

Liability towards Leave Encashment based on Actuarial valuation amounts to Rs. 112.09 Lakhs as at March 31, 2024 [March 31, 2023: Rs. 13.85
Lakhs].

NHAI has imposed certain restrictions on the usage of funds relating to escrow account under the waterfall mechanism of concession agreement to
ensure the same is used only for the operation & maintenance duly approved by NHAI The management is of the opinion that the said restrictions are
in the regular course of operations and does not foresee any implications on the operations of the company.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential
assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not
been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code
becomes effective.

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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41 List of Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

a) Names of the related parties and description of relationship

Relationship
Holding Company

Enterprises having control over the

Company
Fellow Subsidiary

Name of the related parties

GMR Highways Limited (GHWL)

GMR Enterprises Private Limited [GEPL],

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited (GPUIL)

GMR Energy Ltd (GEL)

GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited (GPEL)

GMR Airport Infrastructure Limited [GAIL] w.e.f. December 31, 2021*

GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited (GTTEL)***

Gmr Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited (GHVEPL)

GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Limited (GTAEL)***

GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Ltd ( GHVEPL)

GMR OSE Hungund Hospet Highways Private Limited (GOHHHPL)

GMR Kishangarh Udaipur Ahmdabad Expressways Private Limited (GKUAEPL)
GMR Generation Assets Limited (GGAL) [formerly GMR Renewable Energy Limited (GREL)]
GMR Chennai Outer Ring Road Private Limited (GCORR)

Raxa Security Services Limited (RSSL)
Dhruvi Securities Private Limited ( DSPL)
Delhi International Airports Limited [DIAL]
Other GMR Varalakshmi Foundation ( GVF)
GMR Projects Private Limited, (GPPL)
Mr. O Bangaru Raju, Non-executive Director
Mr Arun Kumar Sharma, Non-executive Director
Mr. B.L. Gupta, Independent Director
Mr Mani Santosh Bommidala, Director
Dr. Kavitha Gudapati. Independent Director
Mr. Mudit Saxena

Key Management Personnel

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary Ms. Ritika Ahwal (Upto February 02, 2022)
Mr. Kashish (W.e.f. April 28, 2022 to April 20, 2023)
Ms. Divya Kalra (W.e.f. April 27, 2023)

Manager Mr. Igbal Singh

41 List of Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
b) Details of the transactions with related parties are as follows ** :

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

Relationship

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Items relating to statement of profit and loss

a. Unwinding interest on loan from related parties

GHWL Holding Company 566.89 580.34

GGAL Fellow Subsidiary 64.15 5779
b. Interest on loan from related parties

GHWL*** Holding Company 557.59 556.07

GPEL Fellow Subsidiary 26.73 26.65
c. Unwinding interest on liability portion of preference shares

GPUIL* Enterprises having control over the Company - 0.57

GHWL Holding Company - 0.69

GHWL*** Holding Company - 124.45
d. Corporate common cost sharing expenses

GPUIL* Enterprises having control over the Company 66.86 26.80
e. Tollway and highways maintenance charges

GHWL Holding Company - 48.93
f.  Charges for Periodic and regular Maintenance of Highways

GHWL Holding Company 1,155.56 227.18
g. Charges for Security & Toll management services

RSSL Fellow Subsidiary 235.25
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41 List of Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
b) Details of the transactions with related parties are as follows ** :

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Relationship
h. Logo fees
GEPL

m.

Enterprises having control over the Company

Unwinding Interest on major maintenance provision

GHWL

Holding Company

Major Maintenance Expenses (Actual expenses incurred)

GHWL
Interest on CCD
GHWL

Other Expenses

Legal and professional fees
GHWL

GCORR

Communication cost
GHWL

Repairs & Maintennace
GHWL

Sitting fees (excluding taxes):

Mr. B.L. Gupta

Dr. Kavitha Gudapati
Remuneration paid to
Mr. Igbal Singh

Items related to balance sheet

n.

Equity shares outstanding
GPUIL*

GHWL
GEL

Equity component of preference shares

GPUIL*

GHWL
GHWL***

Instruments Classified as Equity- 8% Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference

GHWL
GHWL*#*
GPUIL*

Equity component of loan taken

GHWL
GGAL

Holding Company

Enterprises having control over the Company

Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiary

Holding Company

Enterprises having control over the Company

Independent Director
Independent Director

Manager

Enterprises having control over the Company

Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiary

Enterprises having control over the Company

Holding Company
Holding Company

Holding Company
Holding Company
Enterprises having control over the Company

Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiary

Instruments Classified as Equity- 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures

GHWL

Liability portion of loan taken

GGAL
GHWL

Current loan taken from related parties

GPEL
Opening Balance

Add : Received during the Year
Less : Repaid during the Year

Closing Balance
GHWL***
Opening Balance

Add : Received during the Year
Less : Repaid during the Year

Closing Balance

Fellow Subsidiary
Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiary

Holding Company

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

0.01 0.01
= 354.41
1,787.08 1,571.23
0.24 z
9.89 -
1.65 &
10.58 =
1:77. 153
0.36 0.36
; 23,77
2,327.27 2,327.27
5,074.27 5,074.27
2,422.26 2,422.26
46.66 46.66
9,973.03 56.56
z 9,916.47
14,580.04 80.00
# 14,500.04
66.00 66.00
4,888.91 6,062.02
676.57 676.57
21,121.40 -
662.84 598.70
= 6,013.00
266.53 266.53
266.53 266.53
6,163.38 6,163.38
6,163.38 6,163.38
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41 List of Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
b) Details of the transactions with related parties are as follows ** :

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Relationship

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

u.  Interest payable on Loan taken
GHWL***
GPEL

Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiary

V.  Interest payable on CCD

GHWL*** Holding Company
w, Trade Payables
GAIL* Fellow Subsidiary / Enterprises having control over the
Company
GPUIL* Enterprises having control over the Company
GEPL Enterprises having control over the Company
GHWL Holding Company
RSSL Fellow Subsidiary
X.  Other Payable
GHWL Holding Company
Y.  Receivable from
GHVEPL Fellow Subsidiary
z.  Provision for major maintenance
GHWL Holding Company

* [Refer Note No.1.2(i)]
** Reimbursement of expenses are not considered in the above statement.
*+* [Refer Note No.10(i)]

Notes:
i.  Related Party Transactions given above are as identified by the Management.

3,916.67
75.06

0.22

183.79

93.37

0.01

42.58
21.44

67.50

1.25

841.87

3,582.41
55.01

183.79

27.96

0.01

53.48
43.37

10,153.69

1,674.57

iil.  Commitments with related parties: As at year ended March 31, 2024, there is no commitment outstanding with any of the related parties.

iii. Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The transaction from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions as approved by the Audit
Committee. Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured and settlement occurs through cash. There have been no guarantees provided or
received for any related party receivables or payables as per the management. For the year ended March 31, 2024 and year ended March 31,
2023, the Company owes amount to related parties which is payable in terms of the agreements and balance confirmations.

iv.  For terms and conditions related to Preference Share please refer Note no.12

¢. Compensation of key management personnel of the company

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

a. Short-term employee benefits - 21.87

b. Post-employment benefits (provident fund and superannuation fund) - 1.90

c. Termination benefits

d. Any other payment/benefit given to KMPs 2.07 1.89
Total 2.07 25.66

d. Transaction with Key Management Personnel

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Remuneration Outstanding loans/
Short-term Post Other long-term Termination Sitting Fee Others
Mr. Bajrang Lal G - - - . 1.71 - -
- - - - (1.53) - -
Dr. Kavitha Guda - - - - 0.36 = z
- - - - (0.36) - -
Mr. Igbal Singh - - - - - - -
(22) (2) . S z * =

Previous year figures are in brackets

Note: Key Managerial Personnel are entitled to post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits recognised as per Ind AS 19 -
‘Employee Benefits’ in the financial statements. As these employee benefits are lump sum amounts provided on the basis

same is not included above.
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42 Other Statutory Information
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vi.
vii.

viii.

X

There are no balance outstanding on account of any transaction with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or
Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

The Company does not have any Capital work in progress or intangible assets under development whose completion is overdue or has exceeded
its cost compared to its original plan.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entitiy(ies), including foreign entity (intermediaries) with the
understanding that intermediary shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee ,security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entity (Funding Party) wih the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee ,security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company does not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961,

The Company does not own any immovable property and accordingly the title deeds not held in name of the Company does not arise.

The Company has neither transacted in Crypto or Virtual Currency during the year nor held any Crypto or Virtual Currency as at the Balance Sheet
date.

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property

The Company has not declared wilful defaulter by any bank of financial institution of other lender.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017.The Company has not declared wilful defaulter by any bank of financial institution of other lender.

The Company does not have any scheme of arrangements that has been approved by the Competent Authority during the financial year in terms
of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Ratio Analysis
Sl Ratios Numerator Denominator March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Variance Remarks

a) Current Total current assets Total current 0.41 0.02 -2344.81% Due to conversion of
Ratio (in liabilities other payables of
times) related party into

Compulsorily
Convertible
Debentures and
increase in fixed
deposits for less
then 12 months.

b) Debt- Total Debt including interest Total Equity (3.24) (1.54) -110.45% Due to conversion of
Equity accured related party loans
Ratio (In and other payables
times) of related party into

Compulsorily
Convertible
Debentures
classified as
instruments entirely
equity in nature and
implementation of
the resolution plan.

c) Debt Earning before tax + Debt 0.50 0.37 -36.85% Due to

;
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43 Ratio Analysis

Sl Ratios Numerator Denominator March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Variance Remarks

d} Returnon Met Profit after Tax Average Net- 16.09% 11.68% -37.80% NA
Equity (Attributable to Owners) worth
Ratio (In
%)

e) Inventory Revenue from operations Average 116.16 104.12 -11.56% NA
turnover Inventories
ratio (In
times)

f)  Trade Revenue from operations Average of Trade . 5 0.00% NA
Receivable Receivables
s turnover
ratio (In
times)

g) Trade Operating expenses, Average Trade 1.22 2.87 57.61% NA
payables  Employee benefits expense, payable
turnover Other expenses (net of
ratio (In provisions movement
times) excluding provision for

contingencies)

h)  Net capital Total Income Working Capital (4.35) (0.30) -1346.64% Due to conversion of
turnover (current assets other payables of
ratio (In minus current related party into
times) liabilities) Compulsorily

Convertible
Debentures and
increase in  fixed
deposits for less
then 12 months.

i)  Netprofit Net Profit/ (Loss) after Tax Total Income (33.32%) (50.56%) 34.09% Implementation of
ratio (In resolution plan and
%) improvement in the

toll collection.

i) Returnon Earning before taxand  Tangible net 1.05% 10.85% 90.30% Due to conversion of
Capital Interest expenses worth + Total related party loans
employed Debt and other payables
(In %) of related party into

Compulsorily
Convertible
Debentures
classified as
instruments entirely
equity in nature and
implementation  of
the resolution plan.

k) Returnon Interestincome from Banks Investmentin 3.55% 0.00% 100.00% FD interest income

L
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44 Salient aspects of Service Concession Arrangement
NHAI has granted the exclusive right and authority for Improvement, Operation and Maintenance including strengthening and widening of existing 2-
lane road to 4-lane dual carriageway from [) KM 5-735 - KM 394960 of NH-22 and Il) KM 0+000 - KM 0+871 of NH-21 (Ambala-Chandigarh Section) in
the states of Haryana and Punjab on Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) Basis.
NHAI has further granted the exclusive right and authority during the concession period in accordance with terms and condition of the agreement to:

- develop, design, engineer, finance, procure, construct, operate and maintain the Project Highway during the Concession Period.

- manage, operate & maintain the Project Highway and regulate the use thereof by third parties during the Operation Period.

- levy, demand, collect and appropriate the Fees from vehicles and persons liable to payment of Fees for using the Project Highway or any part
thereof and refuse entry of any vehicle to the Project Highway if the due is not paid.

Concession period : The Concession period is 20 year commencing from the appointed date i.e. May 2006
Fees

The Concession Agreement had determined the base fee rate (in Rupees per kms) with base year as 1997 as given in Schedule G to the Concession
Agreement. Toll Rates revised every year on 1st September based on annual average WPI published by the office of Economic Advisor, Ministry of

Commerce & Industry, Government of India for the financial year ending 31st March preceding the date of revision.

The actual fees to be charged to the users shall be computed by the Concessionaire and sent to the Authority for validation as soon as possible after
31st March in every year, but at least forty five days before the rate increase is to be effective. Authority shall provide any comments or request
clarifications as soon as possible upon receipt of fee revision proposal but not later than fifteen days of receipt of the fee revision proposal. If the
Authority does not offer comments or seek clarification during this period the revised fee, as proposed by the Concessionaire, shall be deemed to be

confirmed by the Authority.

Concession Fee

In consideration of the grant of Concession under this Agreement, the Concession fee payable by the Company to the NHAI is Rs. 1 per year during the
terms of the concession agreement.

Negative Grant

For grant of concession, Concessionaire has agreed to pay an amount of Rs. 174.752 Crore (as set out in bid of the bidder and accepted by NHAI) as per
the details tabulated in Article 23 of the Concession Agreement.
Operation and Maintenance

The Company shall operate and maintain the Project Highway by itself or through O&M Contractor and if required, modify, repair or otherwise make
improvement to the Project Highway to comply with Specifications and Standards, and other requirements set forth in this Agreement, Good Industry

Practice, Applicable laws and Applicable Permits and manufacturer's guidelines and instructions with respect to toll systems and more specifically:

i) permitting safe, smooth and uninterrupted flow of traffic during normal operating conditions.
ii) charging, collecting and retaining the Fees in accordance with the concession agreement

iii) minimizing disruption to traffic in the event of accidents or other incidents affecting the safety and use of the Project Highway by providing a rapid

and effective response and maintaining liaison procedures with emergency services.
iv) undertaking routine maintenance including prompt repairs of potholes, cracks, Concrete joints, drains, line marking, lighting and signage.

v) undertaking major maintenance such as resurfacing of pavements, repairs to structures, repairs and refurbishment of tolling system and hardware

and other equipment.
vi) carrying out periodic preventive maintenance to Project Highway including tolling system
vii) preventing with the assistance of concerned law enforcement agencies unauthorised entry to and exit from the Project Highway.
viii) preventing with the assistance of the concerned law enforcement agencies encroachments on the Project Highway including site and preserve the
ix) maintaining a public relations unit to interface with and attend to suggestions from users of the Project Highway, the media, Government
Agencies, and other external agencies.
x) adherence to the safety standards
Monitoring and Supervision during Operation

The Company is required to undertake periodic inspection of the Project Highway to determine the condition of the Project Highway including its
compliance or otherwise with the Maintenance Manual, the Maintenance Programme, Specifications and Standards and the maintenance required and

shall submit report of such inspection ("Maintenance Report") to NHAI and the Independent Consultant.
Additional Tollway

Any of NHAI, Government of India, Government of Haryana or Government of Punjab shall not construct and operate either itself or have the same,
inter alia, built and operated on BOT basis or otherwise any Expressway or other toll road between, inter alia, Ambala-Chandigarh Section from i) Km
54735 - Km 394960 of NH-22 and ii) Km 0+000 - Km 0+871 of NH-21 (the " Additional Tollway") in a manner that such Additional Tollway get opened to

traffic before expiry of 8 (eight) years from the Appointed Date.

L
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45 Figures of the previous year wherever necessary, have been regrouped and rearranged to conform with those of the current year.
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